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CO'\'1I'LAINT

This cIvil administrative Complaint and Notice of Oppmunity for Hearing CComplaim"

is issued to the American Realty & Mortgage Company, Inc. ('Respondent") pursuant to the

authority vested in the Administrator of the United Stales Environmental Protection Agency

CEPA") by Seetion 1414(g)(3) of the Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended ("SOWA"), 42

U,S.c. § 3OOg-3(g)(3).

The Administrator has delegated the authority to issue this Complaint to the Regional

Administrator for EPA Region 9. who in tum has delegated th{ authority to the DireCtor of the

Water Division for EPA Region 9. hereinafter referred to as "Complainant:'
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I This proceeding is subject to EPA's "Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the

2 Administralive Assessmem of Civil Penalties and the Revocalion or Suspension of Permits:' 40

3 C.F.R. Part 22 ("Consolidated Rules of Practice") (Complainanl's fuhibit I).

4 GENERALAI.U:GATIO~IS

5 Each allegation 10 Ihls Complaint has applied at all reh:vam times unless O1herwlse Slaled

6 1. Respondent American Really & Mortgage Company. Inc. is an Arizona eorporalion and

7 therefore a "person" as thattenn is defined in Section 1401(1:) of lhe SOWA. 42 U.S,c. §

8 300f(12). and 40 C.F.R. § 141.2.

9 2. The Respondent owns and/or oper:lIes a water system Lnown as the American Realty and

10 Mortgage Company Inc, water syslem (the "System") located n Pinal County, Arizona, for the

II proviSion to lhe public of piped water for human consumption

J2 3. The System provides water for human consumption to the public lhrough pipes to at least

13 21 service connections thai regularly serve approximately 50 )ear-round residents. and is a

J4 "public water sySlem" as defined by Section 1401(4) of the SI: WA. 42 U.S.c. § 300f(4), and 40

15 C.F.R. § 141.2,

16 4, The System is a public water system that serves at leasl 15 service connections used by

17 year-round residents of the area served by the system, and regdarly serves at leaSI 25 year-round

18 residcnts, and is therefore a "community water system" as defi led by Section 1401(15) of the

19 SOWA. 42 U.S.c. § JOOf(l5), and 40 CF.R. § 14l.2.

20 5. lbe System serves 3.300 persons or fewer and is a "sm til water system" as defined by 40

21 C.F,R. § 14l.2, for the purpose of the Lead and Copper Rule al 40 C.F.R. Part 141. Subpart I.

22 6. As the owner and/or operator of the System. Responde.t is a "supplier of water" as

23 defincd in Section J401(5) of the SOWA. 42 U.S.C § JOOf(5), and 40 CF.R, § 141,2.

24 Respondent is therefore subject to lhe requirements of Part B 0 "the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 300g el

25 seq., and its implementing regulations at 40 C.ER. Part 141.
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7. The source of the System's waler is a ground water w, 11.

2 8. The System serves an average of 50 persons daily lhr~ugh 21 service connections.

3 9. On September 21. 2005, EPA issued an Adminislraliv,~ Order (Ihe "Order") 10 lhe

4 Respondenl pursuant to Secllon 1414(8) of Ihe SOWA, 42 U.!;.c. § 3OOg-3(8), citing violations

5 of the SOWA's implementing regulations at 40 C.F,R. Pan 141. A copy of the Order (Docket

6 No. PWS-AO-2005-01O) is anached to this Complaint and Incorporated herein. (Complainant's

7 Exhibit 2.) The effcctive dale of Ihe Order was September 21 2005. The Order required the

8 Respondent. among other things. 10 achieve compliance with ,'crtain SOWA rcgulmions. in

9 accordance with specified deadlines.

to 10 By lettcrd3led August 14.2007. EPA notIfied Respordent that it had violated the Order

II by (I) failing to complete two six-monlh rounds of lead and ccpper monitoring by the deadline

t2 specified in the Order; (2) failing to perfonn quarterly nitrate l~onitoring for one year; (3) failing

II to perfonn confinnation sampling where initial nitrate sampling results indicate an MCL

t4 violation: (4) failing to comply with the 48-hour reporting reql,irements of 40 c.r.R. § 14131 (b)

t5 for failures to comply with National Primary Drinking Water I~egulalions (NPDWRs). including

t6 40 C.P.R. Part 141; and (5) failing to provide public notice of I'ertain NPDWR violations. (Set'

17 Complainant's Exhibit 3.)

t8 SPECIFIC ALLEGATION}

t9 II. ParngrJphs 1 through 10 are realleged and incorporate,1 herein by reference.

20 12, Following issuance of the Order on September 21, 2005. Respondent failed to comply

21 with the requirements of the Order as follows:

22 Count I: Failure to condu£llead and C0D!!Cf monitoring

23 13. The Lead and Copper Rule al 40 C.P.R. Part 141, Subrart I. requires small community

24 waler systems to conduct tap water sampling for lead and copr:f at five sites at least once every
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six months beginning with the six·month initial compliance p:riod of July I, 1993 through

2 December31. 1993. Set' 40 CF.R. § 141.86.

3 14. Respondent failed to conduct two consecutive si!\-mOlth monitoring periods for lead and

4 copper at fi ve Slles at least once every si!\ months beginning \l'llh the si!\ -month initial

5 comphance period of July I, [993, as required by the Lead an:! Copper Rule, 40 CF,R. Pan 141,

6 Subpan l.

7 15. Based on Respondent's failure to comply with the Lel d and Copper Ru[e, 40 CFR. Pan

8 [41, Subpan I. as described in paragraph 14 above, the Order (pg. 8, paragraph 45) required

9 Respondent to complete two consecutive si!\-month rounds of monitoring for lead and copper, in

to accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 141.86. by the Order's deadline (f August 10,2006.

t I 16. Respondent violated the Order, and the Lead and COJ>IlCr Rule. 40 C.F.R. Pan 141,

12 Subpal1 I, by failing to conduct two consecutive si!\-month ro, nds of monnoring for lead and

13 copper by August 10.2006, or at any time thereafter.

14 Count 2: Failure to conduct qual1crly nitrate monitoring

15 17. 40 CFR. § 141.23(d)(2) requires, among other things that communily water systems

16 conduct quanerly monitoring for nitrates for at least one year hllowing anyone sample in which

17 the concentration is above 50% of the MCL

18 18. Respondent violated 40 CF.R. § 141.23{d)(2) by faili. g to conduct qual1erly monitoring

19 for nitrates for at least one year following submission of its lu. e 3. 2004 and November 19. 2004

20 monitoring results, which revealed nilra!e levels grealer Ihan 50% of the MCL (10.8 mg/I and

21 12,6 on lune 3. 2004, and 12.8 mgll on November 19, 2(04).

22 19, Based on Respondent's violation of 40 CF.R. § 141.2: (d)(2) described above III

23 paragraph 18. the Order (pg. 9, paragraph 52) reqUired Responllent to commence qual1erly

24 moniloring for nitrates by the Order's deadline of October 21, ::005, and continue such

25 monitoring for at least one year in accordance with lhe requirerlents of 40 CFR. § 141 23(d)(2).
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20. Respondent violated the Order. 40 C.F.R. § 141 ,23(d (2). by failing 10 comrnellCe one

2 )'ear of quarterly monitoring for nitrates by the Order's October 21,2005 deadline. and by faihng

3 to complete at least one year of quarterly monitoring for nilra'es at any time thereafter.

4 Count 3: Failure to conduct confirmation sampling

5 21. 40 C.F.R, § 141.23(f){2) requires confirmation sampl ng within 24 hours when imtial

6 nitrate sampling results indicate a violation of the mtrate MCI. of 10 mgt!. but allows systems

7 unable to comply with the 24-hour sampling requirement to irstead immediately notify persons

8 served by the system of the exceedance in aceordance with ttll" Tier I public notification

9 requirememsof40C.F,R.Part 141,SubpartQ.

10 22. Respondent violated 40 GER. § 141.23(f)(2) by failing to issue and provide a Tier I

1I public notice to the persollS scr'ed by the System of its fai lure to take confirmation samples

J2 within 24 hours of Respondent's receipt of the analytical results of a November 19, 2004

13 sampling event, which showed a violation of the nitr;'lte MCL

14 23. Based on Respondent's violation of 40 CF.R. § 141.23(f)(2), as described above in

15 paragraph 22, the Order (pg. 9, parJgnlph 52) required Respondent to conduct confirmation

16 sampling if initial nitrate sampling shows a violation of the nit ';lte MCL. in accordance with 40

17 GF.R. § 141.23(f){2).

18 24. Respondent violated the Order, and 40 C.F,R. § 141.2:\(f)(2), by failing to take a

19 confirmation sample within 24 hours of the System's receipt o· notification of the analytical

20 results of its July 17, 2006 nitrate monitoring, which showed It vels of nitr;'lte at 15.4 mgfl, above

21 the nitrate MCLof 10 mgfl.

22 Count 4: Failure to comply with 48·hour reporting r<;qUiT :ments of 40 CF.R. § 141 ,)Hb)

23 25. 40 CF.R. § 141.31(b) provides Ihat excepl "'here a dif'erent reporting period is specifie

24 in 40 CF.R. Part 141, the supplier of water muSt report to the ~ tate WIthin 48 hOUTS the failure to
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comply with any NPDWR (including failure to comply with monnoring requirements) sct fonh

2 in40C.F.R.PanI41.

l 26. The Ordcr (pg, 10. paragraph 53) required that Respolldent comply upon the effective

4 date of the Order and at all times thereafter with the violation -eponmg requirements of 40

5 C.F.R. § 141.3J(b) by reponing to EPA and the State of Arizona within 48 hours any failure to

6 comply with the NPDWRs (including monitoring requm:menB).

7 27. In violation of the Order. and 40 CF.R, § 141.3l(b), ~espondent failed to notify EPA

8 and the State of Arizona within 48 hours of the following violations: (a) failing to conduct twO

9 consecutive six-month rounds of monltonng for lead and COPller; (b) failing to monitor for

to nitTates in the founh quarter of 2005. the second and fourth qUlrters of 2006. and the first two

tt quarters of 2007; (c) failing to take confinnation samplmg after initial nitrate sampling of July

t2 17,2006 revealed nitrate levels greater Ihan 50% of the nitrate MCL: and (d) a July 17,2006

13 violation of the mtmte MCL.

t4 Count 5 Failure to provide public notice of violations of 40 CF.R, § Pan 141

t5 specified in the Order

t6 28, The Revised Public Notice Rule at 40 CF.R. Pan 141, Subpart Q. §§ 141.201 . 211,

t7 contains the public notification requirements that public water ,ystems are requIred to meet for

t8 all violations of NPDWRs,

19 29 Respondent violated the Revised Public Notice Rule hi failing to provide public notice

2t) to the System's eustomers within 24 hours of the System's violations of the nitrate MCL on June

2t 3.2004 and November 19, 2004. in accordance with the Tier I notice requirements of 40 C.F.R.

22 § 141.202. Respondent also violated the Revised Public Notic" Rule by failing to provide public

23 notice to the System's customers within one year of the Systerr's leammg of ItS failure to

24 comply with the Lead and Copper Rule, 40 CF.R. Pan 141. S~bpan I, in accordance with the

2S Tier 3 public notice requirements of 40 CF.R. § 141.204. as described in paragraph 14 above.
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30. Based on Respondent's violations ofthc Reyised Pub ic Notice Rule at 40 C.F.R. Part

2 141, Subpan Q, as described in paragr..ph 29 above, the Orde' (pg. 10, paragraph 55) required

3 Respondent to issue public notices by October 21, 2005 for R"spondenl's failure to conduct two

4 si~-month rounds of lead and copper monitoring, and for ReSl'ondent's violations of the nitrate

5 MCLon June 3, 2004 and November 19, 2004.

6 31. Respondent violated the Order by failing \0 issue public notices for its lead and cop~r

7 monitoring yiolation and for its nitrate MCL violations, as des:ribed in paragraph 29 aooye, by

8 October 21, 2005, or at any time thereafter.

9 Count 6: Failure (0 provide public notice of violations oj 40 C.F.R. § Pan 141 after the

10 effectiye dllte of the Order

11 32. The Revised Public Notice Rule at40CF.R. Part 141 Subpan Q. contam.the public

12 notification requirements that public water systems are required to meet for all violations of

13 NPDWRs.

14 33. The Order (p. 10, paragraph 55) required Respondent 10 comply within thiny (30) days

15 of the effeetiye date of the Order, and at all times thereafter, w th the public notification

t6 requirements of the Reyised Public Notice Rule at 40 CF.R. P Ir1 141. Subpan Q.

t7 34. In yiolation of the Order, Respondent failed to proYlde public notice pursuant to the

18 Reyised Public Notice Rule at 40 CF.R. Part 141, Subpan Q. uf the following violations that

19 occum:d after the effectlye date of the Order: (a) failing to con Jucttwo consecutive si~-month

20 rounds of monitoring for lead and copper; (b) faihng to moni\Or for nitrates in the second quaner

21 of 2006; (c) failing to take confirmation sampling after initial nitrate sampling of July 17, 2006

22 revealed nitrate level. greater than 50% of the MCL; and (d) a luly 17, 2006 violation of the

23 mtrate MCL.

"
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PROPOSE!) A!),\IINISTRATIVE CIVIL I'ENALTY

2 35. Scction 1414(g)(3) of the SOWA. 42 U.S.c. § 3OOg-3(g)(3). and the Civil Monetary

3 Penally Inl1atlon Adjustment Rule. 40 C.F.R, §§ 19.1-19.4. authorizes the Admll1lstmtor of the

~ EPA to assess an admll1lSlrdtl\'e CIVIl penalty, not exceeding $27•.500. against any person who

5 violates. or fails or refuses to comply with, an order issued under section 1414(g)(I) of the

6 SOWA, 42 U.S.c. § 3OOg-3(g)(I).

7 36. Pursuant to Section 1414(g)(3)(8) of tIN: SOWA. 42 IT.S.C. § 300g-3(g)(3)(8). and tIN:

8 Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. i§ 191-19.4, and in accordance

9 with the enclosed Consolidated Rules of Practice, EPA hercb} requests Ihat a civil penalty of up

10 to twenty-seven thousand five hundred dollars (S27,500) be assessed against Respondent for

II violations of the Order issued pursuant to Section 1414(g)(1) (f the SOWA, 42 U.S.c. § 300g-

12 3(g)(1),

13 37. EPA has detennined the proposed penalty amount in a:cordance with Section 1414 of

14 the SOWA. 42 U.S.c. § 300g-3. EPA took: into consideration the seriousness of the violations.

I S the population at risk, and other appropriate factors. In consid:ring these factors, among other

16 things, Complainant has evaluated Ihe economic benefit to Re!pondent in failing to comply with

17 the SOWA. the gravity and severity of each violation (chi Idren are panicularly susceptible to the

18 adverse health effects of lead and nllrate in drinking water), thl' service population of tIN: System

19 the duratIon of violmion, Respondent's history of non--complialce, and other considerations.

20 Respondent ignored repeated requests and orders by AOEQ anj EPA to come into compliance

21 with the SOWA and the requirements of the Lead and Copper ~ule and the Revised Public

22 Notice Rule. and other SOWA requirements, and has failed 10 I;omply to date. Respondent's

23 history of disregarding requirements of the SOWA and its regulations has prOVIded significant

24 economic benefit to Respondent and placed Respondent's cust"mers at risk: of exposure to

25 elevated levels or lead, copper. and nitrate in their drinking waler.
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PROCEnURES GOVERNING THIS ,\[)MINISTRATIVE LITIGATION

38. The rules of procedure governing this adm,nlSlrdtive litigation an: sct forth in the

Consolidated Rules of Practice, which is codified at 40 C.F.R Pan 22. This proceeding will be

conducted in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Pr.ldlce. Including Subpan I. unless

Respondent requests In the AnsI>.er a hearing on the record In accordance with section 554 of the

Administl"aIIl'C Procedure Act ("APA"),5 U.S,c. § 554. in wtich case Subpan I of the

Consolidated Rules of Practice will nOl apply.

ANSWERING THE COMPL/\JNT

39. If Respondent intends 10 contest any material fact UJXl1 which the ComplalTlI 15 based.

or to contend that the proposed penally is inappropriate or that Respondent is emilled to

judgment as a mUller of law, Respondent must filc with the Regional Hearing Clerk of EPA

Region IX both an original and onc copy of a wrillen Answer 10 the Complaint. 40 CF.R. §

22.15(a). Such Answer must be flied within 30 days after scnice of this Complaint. 40 C.F.R. §

22.15{a). The address of the Regional Hearing Clerk of EPA Jtegion IX is:

Danielle Carr, Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. EnVironmental Protection Agency. Region IX
75 Ha",thome Street (ORC-')
San Francisco. CA 94105

Respondent must also serve a copy of the Answer to the Complaint upon EPA, to the person and

address listed in Paragr~ph 48 below, as required by 40 CF.R. § 22.15(a).

40. Respondent's Answer to the Complaint must clearly and directly admit. deny. or explain

each of the factual allegations contained in the Complaint with regard to which Respondent has

any knowledge. 40 C.F.R. § 22. 15(b). Where Respondent has no knowledge of a particular

factual allegation and so states In liS Answer. the allegation is (eemed denied. 40 CF.R. §

22.15(b). If Respondent fails In its Ans\\--er to admit. deny, or (xplain any material factual

allegation contained in thc Complaint, such failure constitutes hn admission of the allegation. 40

CF.R. § 22.15(d).
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41. The Answer mUSl also state: (I) the circumstances or arguments thai arc alleged 10

2 constilule lhe grounds of any defense. (2) lhe facls that Resp01denl dIsputes (and thus intends 10

3 place at issue in the proceeding). (3) lhe basis for opposing th,' proposed relief. and (4) whelher

4 Respondenl requests a heanng. 40 C-F.R. § 22, JS(b).

5 42. Respondent' s fai lure to affirmati vely raise in the Answer facls lhat conslitutc or might

6 constilule lhe grounds of ilS defense may preclude Responde", at a subsequent slage in lh,s

7 proceeding. from nl.lsing such facts andlor from havmg such f tets admilted into eVidence at a

8 hearing.

9 OPPORTUSITY TO REOUEST A HEARING

10 43. Ifrequesled by Respondent in the Answer. a heanng cpon the issues raised by the

II COmplaml and Answer may be held. 40 C-F.R. § 22.15(c). A,y hearing in this proceeding will

12 be held at a location determined in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.21(d).

13 44. Respondent has lhe righl to elccl a hearing on the record in accordance wilh Section 554

14 of the APA. 5 U.s.C. § 554. 40C-F.R. § 22.42(b). RespondelLt waives lhis righl unless

IS Respondent requesls in lhe Answer a hearing on the record in lCcordance with Section 554 of th

t6 APA.5 U.S.C- § 554. 40 C-F.R. § 22.42(b).

17 45. If Respondent does not requesl a hearing. the Presidin): Officer (as defined in 40 C-F,R.

18 § 22,3) may hold a hearing if the Answer raises issues appropr ale for adjudication. 40 C-F,R. §

19 22.15(c).

20 FAILURE TO ANSWER

21 46. To avoid enlry of a Default On;lcr againsl VOll pursuan: 10 40 C.F.R. § 22.17 for a

22 penalty of up 10 $27,500 as proposed in lhis Complainl, Respondent must file a wrinen Answer

23 wilh lhe Regional Hearing Clerk at the address above within 3(1 daw; of receipt of lhis

24 Complaint.

Complainl and
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47. Any penalty assessed in the Default Order will becon,e due and payable by

2 Respondent without fUl1her proceedings 30 days after the Delault Order becomes final pursuant

3 to 40 C.F.R. § 22.27(c). -0 c.F.R. § 22.17(d). If necessary, EPA may then seek 10 enforce such

~ Default Order against Respondent. and to collect the assessed penally amount. in federal CDun.

5 48. Whether or not Respondent requests a [onnal hearing Respondent may request an

6 infonnal seulcmcnt conference 10 discuss the facts of this casl'. the proposed penally, and the

7 possibihty of seuling this mailer. 40 C.F.R. § 22. 18(b). To T( quest such a se111ement

8 conference, please contact: Rich Campbell, Office of Region ,) Counsel. U.S. Environmental

9 Protection Agency. Region IX, 75 Ha1ktlwme Street (ORC-2) San Francisco. CA 94105, Phone:

10 (415) 972-3870, Mr, Campbell is authorized to receive servia: related to this proceeding.

II 49. The panics may engage in senlement discussions reg;rdless of 'Whether Respondent

12 requests a hearing. 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)( I). In other words. even if Respondent requests a

t3 formal hearing, Respondent may also request an informal settlement conference and the informal

t4 conference procedure may be pursued simultaneously with th( formal adjudicatory hearing

t5 procedure. A request for an informal seulement conference C( nstilUtes neither an admission nor

16 a denial of any of the matters alleged in the Complaint. EPA \ oes not deem a request for an

17 informal senlemcnt conference as a request for a hearing as sp~cified in 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(c).

t8 50, Settlement discussions do not affect Respondent's obi gation to file a timely Answer

t9 to the Complaint pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.15. 40 C.F.R, § 2!.18(b)(J). EPA will not modify

20 its proposed penalty simply be<:ause an informal senlemcnt conference is held

2J 51, The terms and conditions of any seUlementthat may I), reached as a result of a

22 senlement conference will be J«orded In a wnnen Consent Aireement signed by all panies. 40

23 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2). In orderto conclude the proceeding. Ep,\ will e.,ceute a Final Order

24 ratIfying the panies' Consent Agreement. 40 C.f.R. § 22.18{b~3). In aceeptmg the Consent

25 Agreement, Respondent waives any right to contest the allegauons in the Complaint and waives
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any nglllio appeallhc Final Order accompanying the Consen Agrrcment. 40 C.F.R. §

2 22.18(b}(2).

3 52. Respondent's entering mto a senlemcnt does not e:-ail gui.h, waive. satisfy, or otherwise

~ affect Respondent's obligation 10 comply with all applicable Statutory and regulatory

5 requirements and legal orders.

6 FILING OF DOCUMEN"IS

7 53. Respondent must send the Answer and any Hearing R:quest, as "ell as all subsequent

8 documents filed ,n this action. to:

"
"

"
"

"..

"
"

Damelle Carr
Regional Hearing Clerk (ORC-I)
U.s, Environmental Protection Agency Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

Respondent must send a copy of the Answer. a copy of any HI aring Request. and a copy of all

subsequent documents filed in this action, [0:

Rich Campbell
Office of Regional Counsel (ORC-2)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San FrJncisco. CA 94105

54. Respondent has a right to be repre~nted by an allomey at any stage of this proceeding.

55. This Complaint does nOl constitute a waiver. suspensi"n. or mrxllfication of the

requirements of the SDWA. any regulations promulgated ther(under, or any applicable penni\.

56. Neither assessment nOT payment of an administrJtive dvil penally pursuant to section

1414(g}(3)(B) of the Act. 42 U.s-C. § 300g-3(g}(3}(B), will afect Respondcnt·s continuing

obhgallon to comply with the SDWA. and with regulations pr< mulgated thereunder.

Dated this .Jgtlday of September. 2007
Alexis SlrJuss. D reetor
Water Division
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVIcE

,
3 The undcrlHgncd hereby certifies that the original and one copy of the COMPLAII\'T

4 AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARiNG were hand-eamed to the Regional

5 Hearing Clerk. EPA, Region 9, 75 Ha .... thome Street. San Fra lC';SCO, California. and that a true

6 copy of the same was delivered as follows:

7 Via certified mail to:

•,

"
"
"

"

"

Joseph \V. Lee
32241 S. Cenler Street
P.O. Box 640
Willmann, Arizona 85361

warD 7
Dale
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